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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of National Mobile Telecommunication
Company K.S.C.P.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of National Mobile Telecommunication Company K.8.C.P. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) as at 31 December 2021, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

® the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

# the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

# the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

» the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
Jinancial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the State of Kuwait. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our audit approach
Overview

Key Audit Matters e Revenue recognition
e Impairment of goodwill

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Al-Shatti & Co.
Arraya Tower |l, 23rd - 24th Floor, P.O. Box 1753, Safat 13018 Sharg, Kuwait
T: +965 2227 5777 F: 4965 2227 5888, www.pwc.com
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of National Mobile Telecommunication
Company K.5.C.P. (Continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Our audit approach (continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Revenue recognition How our audit addressed the matter

As disclosed in note 16 to the accompanying We audited l:eVen'l:le through a combination of

consolidated financial statements, the Group’s total controls testing, risk analytics and other

revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 substantive audit procedures, as stated below:

amounted to KWD 601,732 thousand. Furthermore, as ) .

at that date, the Group had contract assets, contract * Understanding and evaluating the .

liabilities and deferred income of KD 43,526 significant revenue processes and identifying

thousand (including an amount of KD 3,224 thousand the relevant controls (including IT systems)

within other non-current assets), KD 3,690 thousand and performing validation procedures

and KD 34,254 thousand respectively. The Group through tests of key manual, automated and

records revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue IT dependant controls;

from contracts with customers” where management is * Testing, on a sample basis, contracts,

required to determine, and assign values to, the management’s identification of performance

different performance obligations contained within the obligations, the estimation of standalone

various contracts. selling prices of those performance
obligations and the determination of the

We considered this to be a key audit matter because the timing of revenue recorded;

process of determining and assessing the contractual e Involving IT specialists to test IT general

performance obligations is complex and judgemental controls and certain automated controls

and directly impacts the timing of revenue recognition. surrounding relevant revenue systems on a

In addition, the information systems used in capturing, sample basis;

calculating and recording revenues are complex and ¢ Identifying and examining the key

deal with a large volume of information, The accuracy reconciliations prepared by management

of these systems, or lack thereof, potentially has a between different IT systems within the

significant impact on the recognition of revenues and revenue process;

accordingly, the reported profit of the Group. ¢ Performing substantive analytical
procedures on significant revenue streams

Refer to notes 3.4, 8, 16 and 26 for the accounting after developing expectations of revenues

policy, contract assets, revenue break-up and based upon non-financial data principally

significant accounting judgements and estimates derived from usage and subscriber numbers,

respectively. which are the main drivers of these
revenues;

¢ Performing substantive tests of details in
relation to certain revenue streams; and

e Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
relating to revenue against the requirements
of IFRSs.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of National Mobile Telecommunication
Company K.S.C.P. (Continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Our audit czppraaéli (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit

matter
Impairment of goodwill How our audit addressed the matter
As of 31 December 2021, the carrying value of goodwill We have carried out the following procedures to
amounted to KD 158,941 thousand as disclosed in Note evaluate management's computation of the
5 to the consolidated financial statements. recoverable amount of goodwill:

An entity is required to test goodwill acquired in a A
business combination for impairment at least annually
irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment. Management has determined the
recoverable amount based on the value in use
approach with key assumptions around cash flows,
discount rate, terminal value and ERITDA growth rate
estimates and forecasted levels of capital expenditure,
and has concluded that no impairment is required for
the current year.

Involving our internal valuation specialists
to assess key assumptions used by
management including discount rate and
terminal value. Evaluating whether the cash
flows in the model used by management to
calculate the recoverable amount agree with
those approved by the Board of Directors;
® Testing of reliability of management
forecasting by performing lookback analysis;
e Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
cash flow model;
s Performing sensitivity analyses on key
assumptions used;
e Assessing the disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements relating to goodwill
against the requirements of IFRSs,

We considered the impairment of goodwill to be a key
audit matter because of its size as at 31 December 2021
and the judgements involved in determining the
recoverable amount.

Refer to notes 3.12, 5 (i) and 26 for the accounting
policy, impairment testing of goodwill and significant
accounting judgements and estimates respectively.

Other inforiation

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the report of the
Board of Directors (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Group’s Annual Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Group’s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of National Mobile
Telecommunication Company K.S.C.P. (Continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Responsibilities of -ritc-nTagem_enr and those charged with governance fo;'_ the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies’ Law no. 1
of 2016 and its executive regulations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decistons of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
medify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of National Mobile
Telecommunication Company K.S.C.P. (Continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Board of Directors
relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we
obtained all information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1
of 2016 and its executive regulations and by the Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, as amended, that an inventory count was duly carried out and that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its executive regulations nor of
the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have oecurred
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of
the Group or on its consolidated financial position.

Moreover, we further report that during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any
violations of Law No. 7 of 2010 pertaining to the Establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and the
Regulation of Securities’ Activity and subsequent amendments thereto and its executive bylaws during the
year ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Group or on its
consolidated financial position.

Khalid Ebrhim Al-Shatti
License No.175 A

PricewaterhouseCoopers
(Al-Shatti & Co.)

10 February 2022
Kuwait



National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER

Famr— Note 2021 2020*

KD'ono KP’ooo

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 434,078 481,044
Intangible assets and goodwill 5 282,895 313,435
Right-of-use assets 6 114,545 121,109
Financial assets — equity instruments 1,600 1,920
Other non-current assets 2,203 5,029
Deferred tax assets 7 25,189 23,839
Contractcosts = 14,704 3429
Total non-current agsets _ 868,144 949,805
Current assets
Inventories 11,927 13,007
Contract costs 4,543 3445
Trade and other receivables 8 162,493 151,255
Bank balances and cash 9 124,411 104,303
Total current assets . 303,374 272,010
Totnl assets 1,171,518 1,221 815
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 10 50,403 50,403
Treasury shares 10 (3,598) (3,598)
Translation reserve (315,975) (291,733)
Other reserves 10 244,656 242,941
Retained earnings . 691
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 598,751 551,704
Non-controlling interests ) . 1 93988 100,068
Total equity 632,739 651,772
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 1z 12,696 33,488
Employees’ benefits 12,648 12,984
Lease liabilities 13 100,710 107,846
Other non-current liabilities 18,577 15,644
Contract liabilities 828 = 689
Total non-current liabilities 145,459 170,651
Current Mabilities
Trade and other payables 14 309,04% 303,571
Deferred income 15 34,254 390,473
Loans and borrowings 12 16,468 28,536
Lease liabilities i3 20,143 17,997
Income tax payables 7 10,551 7,944
Contract liabilities i 2,862 1,871
Total current liabilities o m,azo . 8399992
Total liabilities _ o
Total equity and liabilities 1,1 m 1,221,815

* Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications

| COBGER0

thairmai Office Ly L.ua.o

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of this consolidated financial statements




National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

P Note . 2021 2020*
KD'ooo KD'coo
Revenue 16 601,732 592,836
Other income 4,655 1,029
606,387 563,865
Network, interconnect and other operating expenses 17 (311,799) (317,743)
Employee salaries and associated cost (75,735) (65,263)
Management fee expense 22 (16,515) (16,383)
Depreciation and amortisation 18 (143,627 (146,281)
Finance costs 19 (10,875) (11,419)
Finance income 2,712 2,833
Impairment losses on financial assets (5,978) (12,365)
Impairment losses on other non-financial assets 4 (143) -
Other losses— net (4,039) (3,812)
Profit before directors’ remuneration, contribution
to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of
Sciences (“KFAS”), National Labour Support Tax
(“NLST”), Zakat and income tax 40,388 23,432
Directors’ remuneration (634) (637)
Contribution to KFAS, NLST and Zakat 20 {463) {378)
Profit before income tax 39,291 22,417
Income tax 7 (14,075) {15,489)
Profit for the yvear 25,216 6,028
Profit attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent 19,250 3,390
Non-contrelling interests ) i1 5,966 3.538
25,216 6,028
Basic and diluted earnings per share (fils) 21 38 7

* Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications,




National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of this consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Note 2021 2020
KD’o00 KD’noo
Profit for the year 25,216 6,928
Other comprehensive loss
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Foreign currency translation differences (28,993) (1,629)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Net changes in fair value on investments in equity
instruments designated as at FVTOCI (320) (168)
Other comprehensive loss - net of tax (29,313) (1,797)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year {4,097) 5,131
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent (5,312) 4,926
Non-controlling interests 1,215 205
(4,097) 5,131

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of this consolidated financial statements.
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National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

_ Note 2021 2020*
KIYooo KD'ooo
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 39,201 22,417
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 18 143,627 146,281
Impairment losses on financial assets 5,978 12,365
Impairment losses on other non-financial assets 4 143 -
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 94 (460}
Finance costs 19 10,875 11,419
Finance income (2,712) (2,833)
Provision for KFAS, NLST and Zakat 20 463 378
Provision for slow moving inventory 416 1,956
Provision for employees’ benefits 2,208 1,842
Operating profit before working capital changes 200,383 193,365
Working capital changes in:
Other non-current assets (2,174) 42
Inventories 862 12,634
Contract costs 537 307
Trade and other receivables (15,383) 4,922
Other non-current liabilities 2,933 153
Trade and other payables 4,747 29,233
Deferred income (5,219) (3,384)
Contract liabilities 1,130 (2,013)
Cash generated from operations 187,816 235,259
Employees’ benefits paid (2,511) (779)
Income tax paid 7 {10,076) {18,801)
Net cash generated from operating activities 175,229 215,679
Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase)/ decrease in term deposits (B,746) 11,273
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4 (74,148) (99,590)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 125 568
Acquisition of intangible assets 5 (3,843) (4,676)
Interest received 2,712 2,833
Net cash used in investing activities E {83,900} (80.502)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid {4,127) (4,521)
Dividend paid to shareholders of the parent (7,863) (24.587)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (6,647) (4,830)
Payment to employee association fund (165) (162)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 37,576 86,655
Repayments of loans and borrowings (68,4097) (130,503)
Paymenis of lease liabilities including interest 17 (27,338) _ [26,280)
Net cash used in financing activities {(76,071) (104,237)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,358 21,850
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations {2,996} 3,267
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 85,533 60,416
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 96,895 | 85,533

* Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications

The accompanying notes from 1 to 2¢ form an integral part of this consolidated financial statements.
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National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P. (“the Company”) is a Kuwaiti shareholding
company incorporated by Amiri Decree on 10 October 1997. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”) are engaged in the following:

- Purchase, supply, installation, management and maintenance of wireless sets and equipment,
mobile telephone services, pager system and other telecommunication services;

- Import and export of sets, equipment and instruments necessary for the purposes of the
Company;

- Purchase or hiring communication lines and facilities necessary for providing the Company's
services in co-ordination with the services provided by the State, but without interference or
conflict herewith;

- Purchase of manufacturing concessions directly related to the Company’s services from
manufacturers or producing them in Kuwait;

- Introduction or management of other services of similar nature and supplementary to
telecommunications services with a view to upgrade such services or rendering them integrated;

- Conduct technical research relating to the Company's business in order to improve and upgrade
the Company’s services in co-operation with competent authorities within Kuwait and abroad;

- Purchase and holding of lands, construction and building of facilities required for achieving the
Company’s objectives

- Purchase of all materials and machineries needed to undertake the Group’s activities as well as
their maintenance in all possible modern methods;

- Use of financial surplus available at the Company by investing the same in portfolios managed by
specialized companies and parties as well as authorizing the board to undertake the same; and

- The Company may have interest or in any way participate with corporate and organizations which
practice similar activities or which may assist it in achieving its objectives in Kuwait or abroad. It
may acquire such corporates, or make them subsidiary.

The Company operates under a licence from the Ministry of Communications, State of Kuwait and
elsewhere through subsidiaries in the Middle East, North Africa region and Maldives. The Company's
shares are listed on the Boursa Kuwait.

The Company is a subsidiary of Ooredoo International Investments L.L.C., (“the Parent Company”), a
subsidiary of Ooredoo Q.P.5.C. (“Ooredoo” or “the Ultimate Parent Company”), which is a Qatari
shareholding company listed on the Qatar Exchange.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Ooredoo Tower, Soor Street, Kuwait City, State of
Kuwait, P.O. Box 613, Safat 13007, State of Kuwait.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 10 February 2022 and are subject to the approval of the Annual General Assembly of the
shareholders which has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by International

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its executive regulations.

11



National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

2,

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
following;

o Equity instruments, classified as Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI"),
are measured at fair value;

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration, which is given in exchange for goods and
services.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Kuwaiti Dinar, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands (KD'oo0)
except when otherwise indicated.

Judgments, estimates and risk management

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affects the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The significant judgments made by management in applying the Group’s accounting policies, the key
sources of estimation uncertainty and financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed
in note 26.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the periods
presented (except as mentioned otherwise) in these consolidated financial statements, and have been
applied consistently by the Group entities, where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group.

GOING CONCERN

The directors have, at the time of approving the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Basis OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (including structured entities) and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;
- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,
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3.
3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

- the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the company, other vote holders or other parties;
rights arising from contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the company has or does not have the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is measured at fair value, as
are the identifiable net assets acquired, and any amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree,
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within scope of IFRS g Financial instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS ¢. Other
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at FV at each reporting
date with changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)
A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILI (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group reassess whether we correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of
the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognized in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group report in the consolidated financial statements provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which
is no longer than one year from the acquisition date, the provisional amounts recognized at acquisition
date are retrospectively adjusted to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected the measurement of the
amounts recognized as of that date. During the measurement period, the Group also recognize
additional assets or liabilities if new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition of those assets and
liabilities as of that date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of our cash-generating units, or CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or Habilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

Where goodwill acquired in a business combination has yet to be allocated to identifiable CGUs
because the initial accounting is incomplete, such provisional goodwill is not tested for impairment
unless indicators of impairment exist and we can reliably allocate the carrying amount of goodwill to
a CGU or group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.
Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the
CGU retained,

B) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (*NCI™)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

C) SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.
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3.

3.2

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED}

D) LoSSOF CONTROL

E) TRANSACIIONS ELIMINATED ON CONSOLIDATION

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised

gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

The subsidiaries of the Group, incorporated in the consolidated financial statements of National
Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P. are as follows:

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
fair value when control is lost.

Group effective
Name of subsidiary Principal activity inggur;;:z g{ n 822;‘:2::::;;9
2021 2020
. . Telecommunication .
Wataniya Telecom Algerie 5.P.A. (WTA) T Algeria 71% 71%
Ooredoo Tunisie 5.A. Telecommunication Tunisia 75% 75%
company
Wataniya International FZ - L.L.C. Investment company UAE 100% 100%
‘. Telecommunication -
Ooredoo Maldives PLC e Maldives 90.5% 90.5%
WARF Telecom International Pvt. Lid. Telecg‘l]nnl:;::}(’:atlon Maldives 65% 65%
Wataniya Palestine Mobile L
Telecommunication Publish Shareholding Telecg(r)n':u;r:(’:atlon Palestine 49.26% | 49.26%
Company “Ooredoo Palestine” (i) pany
Phono for General Trading and Contracting | Telecommunication .
Company W.L.L. company Kuwait 99% k)
— Telecommunication .
Fast Telecommunications Company W.L.L. T Kuwait 099% 99%
Ooredoo Consortium Ltd. Investment company Malta 100% 100%
QOoredoo Tunisia Holdings Ltd. Investment company Malta 100% 100%
Al Wataniya Gulf Telecommunications . . .
Holding Company S.P.C. Investment company Bahrain 100% 100%
Abraj Al Kuwait Holding L.L.C. (ii) Holding Company Kuwait 100% -
Tunisia Towers Infraco (i} Holding Company Tunisia 75% -
Mediterraneenne Prestations De Services . .
(MPS) (ii) Holding Company Algeria 1% -

ability to affect those returns through its power over Qoredoo Palestine.

The Group holds an effective 49.26 % (2020: 49.26%) of Ooredoo Palestine and has established control
over the entity as it can demonstrate power through holding 49.3% of the voting interests in Wataniya
Palestine Mobile Telecommunications Public Shareholding Company (“Qoredoo Palestine”) along with
its right to appoint the majority of the board of directors at all titne, where major decisions are taken
with simple majority. This exposes and establishes rights of the Group to variable returns and gives

(i) These entities were incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2021 and are dormant.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.3 CHANGES TO SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or
after

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 — Amendments to IFRS 1 January 2021
9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In August 2020, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 to address the issues that arise during the reform of an interest
rate benchmark rate, including the replacement of one benchmark with an
alternative one.

The Phase 2 amendments provide the following reliefs:

» When changing the basis for determining contractual cash flows for financial
assets and liabilities (including lease liabilities), the reliefs have the effect that
the changes, that are necessary as a direct consequence of IBOR reform and
which are considered economically equivalent, will not result in an immediate
gain or loss in the income statement.

+ The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most IAS 39 or IFRS 9 hedge
relationships that are directly affected by IBOR reform to continue. However,
additional ineffectiveness might need to be recorded.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements.

COVID-19-related Rent Concessions — Amendments to IFRS 16 1 June 2020/
1 April 2021

In May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(Amendment to IFRS 16) that provides practical relief to lessees in accounting

for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by

introducing a practical expedient to IFRS 16, The practical expedient permits a

lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID- 19-related rent concession is a

lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any

change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-1g-related rent concession

the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change

were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease

that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;
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3.

33

34

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Changes to significant accounting policies (Continued)

1. New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)

COVID-19-related Rent Concessions — Amendments to IFRS 16  1June 2020/
(Continued) 1 April 2021

b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in
reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2021 and increased lease
payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021); and

¢) Thereis no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The relief was originally limited to reduction in lease payments that were due
on or before 30 June 2021. However, the IASB subsequently extended this date
to 30 June 2022

In the current financial year, the Group has applied the amendment to IFRS 16
(as issued by the IASB in May 2020).

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements.

2. Impact of new standards (issued but not yet adopted by the Group)

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions,

EEVENUE

Revenue is measured at an amount that reflects the considerations, to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue is adjusted for expected discounts and volume discounts, which are
estimated based on the historical data or forecast and projections. The Group recognizes revenue when
it transfers control over goods or services to its customers.

Revenue from telecommunication services mainly consists of access charges, airtime usage, messaging,
interconnect fees, data and connectivity services, connection fees and other related services. Services
are offered separately or as bundled packages along with other services and/ or devices.

For bundle packages, the Group accounts for individual products and services separately if they are
distinct i.e. if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the bundled package
and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate product and
services (i.e. distinct performance obligations, “PO”) in a bundle based on their stand-alone selling
prices.

The stand-alone selling prices are determined based on the observable price at which the Group sells
the products and services on a standalone basis. For items that are not sold separately (e.g. customer
loyalty program) the Group estimates standalone selling prices using other methods (i.e. adjusted
market assessment approach, cost plus margin approach or residual approach).
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3.

3.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENULE (Continued)
The Group principally obtains revenue from following key segments:

Mobile services

Mobile service contracts typically consist of specific allowances for airtime usage, messaging and data,
and connection fees, In this type of arrangement, the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits as the Group performs the service. Thus, the revenue is recognized over the period as and
when these services are provided.

Fixed services

The Group offers fixed services which normally include installation and configuration services, internet
connectivity, television and telephony services. These services are bundled with locked or unlocked
equipment, such as router and/ or set-top box. Similar to mobile service contracts, fixed service revenue
with locked equipment are recognized over the contract period, whereas revenue recognition for
unlocked equipment is upon transfer of control to the customer.

Interconnection and reaming revenue

Revenue from interconnection and roaming services provided to other telecom operators are
recognised based on satisfaction of performance obligations and by applying contractual rates net of
estimated discounts.

Customer loyalty schemes

The Group has concluded that it is acting as an agent on customer loyalty scheme arrangements which
are redeemed through its partners hence revenue is accounted on net basis.

The Group concluded that the loyalty scheme gives rise to a separate performance obligation because
it generally provides a material right to the customer. The Group allocates a portion of the transaction
price to the loyalty scheme liability based on the relative standard standalone selling price of loyalty
points and a contract liability is recognised until the points are redeemed or expired.

Value-a

The Group has offerings where it provides customers with additional content, such as music and video
streaming and SMS services, as Value-Added Services (VAS). On this type of services, the Group
determines whether they are acting as a principal and accordingly recognizes gross revenue if it is a
principal, and net revenue if it is an agent.

Connection fees

The Group has concluded that connection fees charged for the activation of services will be recognized
over the contract period. The connection fees that is not considered as a distinct performance obligation
shall form part of the transaction price and recognised over the period of service,

ts arri M

The Group has concluded that in case of multiple elements arrangements with subsidized products
delivered in advance, the component delivered in advance (e.g. mobile handset), will require
recognition of a contract asset. Contract asset primary relates to the Group’s right on consideration for
services and goods provided but not billed at the reporting date.
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3.
3-4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

REVENUE (Continued)

Installation cost, commissions to third party dealers, marketing expenses

The Group has concluded that commissions and installation costs meet the definition of incremental
costs to acquire a contract or a costs to fulfil a contract. The Group has capitalized these expenses as
contract cost assets and amortized as per portfolic approach. Recognized contract assets will be subject
to impairment assessment under IFRS 9 requirements.

Ut missi

The Group has concluded that the sale of prepaid cards to dealers or distributors where the Group
retains its control over the prepaid cards is assessed as a consignment arrangement, Thus, the Group
shall not recognize revenue upon sale to dealers or distributors but upon utilisation or expiration of
prepaid cards. Consequently, the commission arising from the sale of prepaid card is recognized as an
expense.

In cases where the Group transfers its control over the prepaid cards to dealers, distributors or
customers, the Group has concluded that the upfront commission qualifies as a consideration payable
to a customer and therefore will be treated as a reduction of the transaction price. Similarly, the Group
shall recognise revenue only upon utilization or expiration of prepaid cards.

Commission income

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in the transaction, the
revenue recognised is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

igni nancing component

The Group has decided to recognize interest expense at appropriate annual interest rate over the
contract period and total transaction price including financing component is recognized when
equipment is delivered to customer.,

il a. an

The Group has determined that contract assets and liabilities are to be recognised at the performance
obligation level and not at the contract level and both contract assets and liabilities are to be presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements. The Group classifies its contract assets and
liabilities as current and non-current based on the timing and pattern of flow of economic benefits.

Discounts and promotions

The Group provides varicus discounts and promotions to its customers, which may be agreed at
inception or provided during the contract term. The impact and accounting of these discounts and
promotions vary and may result in recognition of contract asset.
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3.
35

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASES

A. Definition of leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identifted asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has the right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare
cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group
has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

(i} The Group has the right to operate the asset; or

(ii) The Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

B. As a lessee

The Group leases several assets including sites, office buildings, shops, vehicles and others. The average
lease term is 2 to 20 years. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate over a period of lease term. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease term determined by the Group comprises non-cancellable period of lease contracts, periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise
that option.
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3.
35

3.6

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
LEASES (CONTINULD)

B. As a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a) Fixed payments; and

b) Lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets, which do not meet the definition of investment property,
separately from other assets and also separately presents lease liabilities, in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases of all class of underlying assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less, or those
leases which have low-value underlying assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components and instead
accounts for each lease component and associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

OTHER LOSSES - NET

Other losses - net represents income / (loss) generated by the Group that arises from activities outside
of the provision for communication services and equipment sales. Key components of other losses - net
are recognised as follows:

Foreign exchange gain and losses

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis
as either finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a
net gain or net loss position.

Taxes

Some of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are subject to taxes on income in various foreign
Jjurisdictions. Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current year and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the financial reporting year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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3.

3.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONTINUED)
TaXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided based on temporary differences at the end of the financial reporting
year between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss; and

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unutilised tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unutilised tax losses can be utilised except:

#  Where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss;
and

¢ in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the financial reporting
year and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax
assets are reassessed at each end of the financial reporting year and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the financial reporting year.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

T T T r

Current and deferred income tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they related to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred income tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3.

37

2.8

39

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoOLICIES (CONTINUED)
TaxEs (CONTINUED)

Tax exposure

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New
information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgments regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period
that such a determination is made.

Zakat, KFAS and NLST

Zakat, Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) and National
Labour Support Tax (NLST) represent levies/taxes imposed on the Company at the flat percentage of
net profits attributable to the Company less permitted deductions under the prevalent respective fiscal
regulations of the State of Kuwait.

Tax / statutory levy Rate

Contribution to KFAS 1.0% of net profit less permitted deductions

NLST 2.5% of net profit less permitted deductions

Zakat 1.0% of net profit less permitted deductions
FINANCE COS1

Finance costs comprise interest expense on lease liabilities and loans and borrowings, unwinding of the
discount on provisions recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FINANCE INCOME

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested that is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using effective
interest method.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN1

Recognition and measurement:

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any impairment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The costs of self-
constructed assets include the following:
The cost of materials and direct labor.

Any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use;

When the Group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

Capitalized borrowing costs.
Cost also includes transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign

currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

23



National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
{All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)}

Recognition and measurement:(Continued)

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the related property, plant and equipment when the
construction or installation and related activities necessary to prepare the property and equipment for
their intended use have been completed, and the property plant and equipment are ready for
operational use.

Expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is
accounted for separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is
written off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases future economic
benefits of the related item of property, plant and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of each component. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation of these assets commences from the date that they are installed and are ready for use, or
in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows.

Buildings 5 — 40 years
Exchange and networks assets 5 — 25 years
Subscriber apparatus and other equipment 2 — 10 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written
down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and their value
I use.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The asset’s
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each financial year end.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at each financial year., Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the nature of the intangible asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of identifiable net assets
of the investee at the date of acquisition which is not identifiable to specific assets.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination from the acquisition date is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Li ri ] ssei
The license and other intangible assets are being amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful

lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated:

represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

is not larger than a segment based on the Group's operating segments as determined in accordance
with IFRS 8, Operating Segments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ENTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

A summary of the useful lives and amortisation methods of Group’s intangible assets other than
goodwill are as follows:

License and other

intangible assets Brand name

Useful lives Finite Finite
{3 — 20 years) (6 years)

Amortisation method used Amortised on a straight line Amortised on a straight line
basis over the periods of basis over the periods of
availability. availability

Internally generated or acquired Acquired Acquired

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Group determines the fair value of an asset or liability
at initial measurement or at each reporting date, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 = Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting date.
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315

(W)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {(other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive or fair value through profit and loss, depending on the
classification of the financial assets,

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments designated at amortised cost
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Amortised cost and effective interest rate method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
315 FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(if) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by

an aequirer in a business combination,

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value and other reserves. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal of

the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

¢ for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,

exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other losses — net’ line item; and

¢ for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income in the investments revaluation reserve,

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”") on trade and other receivables,
contract assets and bank balances. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade and other receivables and contract assets. The expected
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the

reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting

date.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

1 iti
The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of
probability of default (“PD”) of exposures with the passage of time. This analysis includes the

identification for any changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors across
various geographies of the Group. For trade receivables, the average credit terms are 30 days.

vodit-i i
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower,

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c} thelenderofthe borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

v} Measurement and recognition ected credit loss
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets {continued)

T dr ifi redi

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected
loss allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party,

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in consolidated statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

(v) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the fair value and other reserves is not reclassified to consolidated statement profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained earnings,

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:
The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

The Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LIABILITILS

The Group’s financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fingncial ligbilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, that are not designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial
liability.

Forei han , T
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost
at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other
losses — net’ line item in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

r niti nancia
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The bonus shares and rights issued during the year are shown
as an addition to the share capital. Issue of bonus shares are deducted from the accumulated retained
earnings of the Group. Any share premium on rights issue are accounted in compliance with local
statutory requirements.

Dividend on ordinary share capital

Dividend distributions to the Group’s shareholders are recognized as a liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividend are approved by the shareholders. Dividend
for the year that are approved after the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements are
considered as an event after the reporting date.

F I T

The cost of the Company’s own shares purchased, including directly attributable costs, is classified
under equity. Gains or losses arising on sale are separately disclosed under shareholders’ equity and
these amounts are not available for distribution. These shares are not entitled to cash dividends. The
issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average
cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.
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3.19

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise
convertible notes and share options granted to employees, if any.

Where the effect of the assumed conversion of the convertible notes and the exercise of all outstanding
options have anti-dilutive effect, basic and diluted EPS are stated at the same amount.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred
on completion and disposal,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured as a best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Decommissioning liability

The Group recognises a decommissioning liability where it has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

The Group records full provision for the future costs of decommissioning for network and other assets.
When the liability is initially recognised, the present value of the estimated costs is capitalised by
increasing the carrying amount of the related network and other assets to the extent that it was incurred
by the development/ construction.

Changes in the estimated timing or cost of decommissioning are dealt with prospectively by recording
an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding adjustment to network and other assets. Any
reduction in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, any deduction from the asset to which it
relates, may not exceed the carrying amount of that asset. If it does, any excess over the carrying value
is taken immediately to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an
addition to the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether this is an indication of
impairment of the asset as a whole, and if so, tests for impairment. If, the estimate for the revised value
of network and other assets net of decommissioning provision exceeds the recoverable value, that
portion of the increase is charged directly to expense.

Over time, the discounted liability is increased for the change in present value based on the discount

rate that reflects current market assessments and the risks specific to the liability. The periodic
unwinding of the discount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a finance cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
PROVISIONS {CONTINUED)

Decommissioning liability (Continued

The Group recognises neither the deferred tax asset in respect of the temporary difference on the
decommissioning liability nor the corresponding deferred tax liability in respect of the temporary
difference on a decommissioning asset.

Employee benefits

The employee benefits is payable on completion of employment, The provision is calculated in
accordance with applicable labour law based on employees’ salaries and accumulated periods of service
or on the basis of employment contracts, where such contracts provide extra benefits,

With respect to its Kuwaiti employees, the Group makes contributions to Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group's obligations are limited to
these contributions, which are expensed when due. The Group expects this method to produce a reliable
approximation of the present value of the obligations.

FOREIGN CURKENCY TRANSACTIONS

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional eurrency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
financial reporting year.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of fair value through other
comprehensive income which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated to Kuwaiti Dinar at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated to Kuwaiti Dinar at the average exchange rate (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in this case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions).

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the
foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-
controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control or significant influence
is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-
controlling interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that
includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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o
i
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a
monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised
in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Financial information on operating segments is presented in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The consolidated financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the
reporting date and the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue,
provided they give evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date. Any post year-end events
that are non-adjusting events are discussed on the consolidated financial statements when material.
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Exchange Subscriber
and apparatus Capital
Land and networks and other work in
buildings assets  equipment progress Total
KD’ooo KD’ooo KD’ooo KD’oo0 KD’ooo

Cost
At 1January 2020 64,819 1,109,041 146,796 87,697 1,408,353
Additions 1,944 39,209 2,296 56,141 99,590
Disposals (125) (23,428) (24,403) (59) (48,015)
Transfers 83 57,775 6,509 (64,430) (63)
Exchange adjustment (1,893) (38,454) (2,581) (4,673) (47,601)
At 31 December 2020 64,828 1,144,143 128,617 74,676 1,412,264
Additions 130 43,418 3,198 27,402 24,148
Disposals (133) (5,130) (2,594) . (7,857)
Transfers 1,235 36,462 (390) (37,519) (212)
Exchange adjustment (1,590) {46,860) (3,411) (3,142) (55,003)
At 31 December 2021 64,470 1,172,033 125,420 61,417 1,423,340
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2020 32,123 750,033 123,868 - 906,024
Provided during the year 3,344 91,811 0,438 - 104,593
Disposals (115) (23.419) (24,373) e (47,907)
Transfers (14) (49) 28 - (35)
Exchange adjustment (1,362) {27,568) {2,525) - (31,455)
At 31 December 2020 33,976 700,808 106,436 - 931,220
Provided during the year 3,045 94,328 7:977 - 105,350
Impairment during the year - 143 - - 143
Disposals (81) (5,012) (2,547) - (7,640)
Transfers - 2,683 (=2,683) - -
Exchange adjustment (1,214) (36,289) (3,208) - (40,711)
At 31 December 2021 35,726 846,661 105,975 - 988,3621
Carrying value
At 31 December 2020 30,852 353,335 22,181 74,676 481,044
At 31 December 2021 28,744 325,372 19,445 61,417 434,978
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5.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

License and
other
intangible Brand
Goodwill assets nante Total
KD’ooo KD’ooo KD’ooo KD’ooo

Cost
At 1January 2020 172,570 403,560 8,613 584,743
Additions - 4,676 - 4,676
Disposals - (216) - {216)
Transfers = 63 - 63
Exchange adjustment 9,731 (4,716} 489 5,504
At 31 December 2020 182,301 403,367 9,102 594,770
Additions - 3,843 - 3,843
Disposals - (136) - (136)
Transfers = (7,473) - (7,473)
Exchange adjustment {(12,298) (19,212) (620) (32,130)
At 31 December z021 170,003 380,389 8,482 558.874
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020 11,241 249,181 8,613 269,035
Provided during the year - 19,245 - 19,245
Disposals - {216) - (216)
Transfers - 35 - 35
Exchange adjustment 678 (7,931) 489 (6,764)
At 31 December 2020 11,919 260,314 9,102 281,335
Provided during the year - 15,834 - 15,834
Disposals = (134) > (134)
Transfers - (77,160) - {7,160}
Exchange adjustment (857) (12,359) {620) (13,836)
At 31 December 2021 11,062 256,495 8,482 276,039
Carrying value
At 31 December 2020 170,382 143,053 - 313,435
At 31 December 2021 158,941 123,804 - 282,835

i

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to individual cash generating
units (CGUs) for impairment testing as follows:

Carrying Carrying
value value
Cash generating units 2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Ooredoo Tunisie 8.A. 157,014 168,455
Fast Telecommunications Company W.L.L. 1,027 1,927
158,941 170,382
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vk

i

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill was tested for impairment as at 31 December 2021. The recoverable amount of the CGUs
was determined based on value in use calculated using cash flows projections by management
covering a period of five years.

Key Assumptions used in value in use calculations

Key Assumptions

The principal assumptions used to determine value-in-use include long-term cash flows, discount
rates, terminal value growth rate estimates, EBITDA growth rate and CAPEX. The assumptions are
constructed based upon historic experience and management'’s best estimate of future trends and
performance and take into account anticipated efficiency improvements over the forecasted period.

Forecastr r

Forecast revenue growth rates are based on past experience and management’s best estimate of
future trends in the market including number of customers, penetrations, average revenue per users,
new products and services.

Operating profits

Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins and management’s
best estimate of future trends including new revenue streams, cost saving initiatives and expected
efficiency improvements.

Discount rates

Discount rates reflect management’s estimate of the risks specific to each unit. Discount rates are
based on a weighted average cost of capital for each CGU and ranged from 7% to 12% (2020: 9% to
12%).

Budgeted Capex

The cash flow forecasts for budgeted capital expenditure are based on past experience and include
the ongoing capital expenditure required to continue rolling out networks in emerging markets,
providing enhanced voice and data products and services, and meeting the population coverage
requirements of certain licenses of the Group. Capital expenditure includes cash outflows for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets.

Long-term ca ws and working capi timates

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts for the next five years, derived from the most recent annual
business plan approved by the Board of Directors.

The business plans take into account local market considerations such as the number of subscribers,
roaming revenue, average revenue per user, operating costs, taxes, capital expenditure, and EBITDA.
The growth rate does not exceed average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets and it ranges
from 3.7% to 8.7% (2020: 5.1% t0 5.4%).

The Group has also performed a sensitivity analysis by varying discount and growth rate by a

reasonable possible margin. Based on such analysis, there are no indications that Goodwill is
impaired considering the level of judgements and estimations used.
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6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Exchange Subscriber
and apparatus
Land and networks and other

buildings assets  equipment Total
KD’ooo KD’o00 KD’ooo KD’ogo

Cost
At 1 Januvary 2020 26,240 131,006 3,723 161,869
Additions 3,831 18,745 1,808 24,474
Reduction on early termination (3,184) (1,970) (279) (5.433)
Exchange adjustment (857) (1,650) (129) {2,636)
At 31 December 2020 26,030 147,031 5,213 178,274
Additions = 17,272 3,063 20,335
Reduction on early termination (248) (1,911) (103) (2,262)
Exchange adjustment (1,137) (3,6035) (282) (5,024)
At 31 December 2021 24,645 158,787 7,801 191,323
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020 8,500 26,710 2,343 37,562
Provided during the year 4,200 17,345 898 22,443
Reduction on early termination (1,843) (254) (254) (2,351)
Exchange adjustment (236) {140) (113) (489)
At 31 December 2020 10,630 43,661 2,874 57,165
Provided during the year 3,263 17,494 1,686 22,443
Reduction on early termination - (705} (56) (761)
Exchange adjustment (573) (1,325) (171) (2,069)
At 31 December 2021 : 13,320 50,125 4,333 76,778
Carrying value
At 31 December 2020 15,400 103,370 2,330 121,109
At 31 December 2021 11,325 99,662 3,558 114,545

Following the election of the Group not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term and low-value leases, KD 660 thousand and KD 112 thousand respectively (2020: KD 870
thousand and KD g9 thousand respectively), were recognized as expenses during the year. Moreover,
variable lease payments which were recognized as expenses during 2021 amounted to KD 334

thousand (2020: KD 661 thousand).

7. TAXATION

The Company is not subject to corporate income tax in the State of Kuwait. The income tax represents
amounts recognised by the subsidiaries. The major components of the income tax expense for the

year included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Current income tax
Current income tax charge 16,758 14,294
Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,683) 1,195
14,075 15,489
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7. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The tax rate applicable to the taxable subsidiaries is in 25.78% (2020: 27.56%). For the purpose of
determining the taxable results for the year, the accounting profit of the companies were adjusted for
tax purposes. Adjustments for tax purposes include items relating to both income and expense
allowed in accordance with respective tax laws of subsidiaries.

The adjustments are based on the current understanding of the existing laws, regulations and
practices of each subsidiaries’ jurisdiction. In view of the operations of the Group being subject to
various tax jurisdictions and regulations, it is not practical to provide a detailed reconciliation
between accounting and taxable profits together with the details of the effective tax rates. As a result,
the reconciliation includes only the identifiable major reconciling items. The Group tax reconciliation
is presented as follows:

2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Profit before tax 39,291 22,417
Loss of parent and subsidiaries not subject to corporate
income tax 3.284 13,206
Profit of parent and subsidiaries subject to corporate income
tax 42,575 35,623
Add:
Allowances, accruals and other temporary differences 14,902 6,549
Expenses and income that are not subject to corporate tax 7,600 9,165
Depreciation — net of accounting and tax (75) 521
Taxable profit of subsidiaries and associates that are subject
to corporate income tax 65,002 51,858
Income tax charge at the effective income tax rate of
25.78% (2020: 27.56%) 16,758 14,204
Movement of deferred tax asset — net:
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
At 1 January 23,839 27,035
Benefit / (expenses) 2,683 (1,105)
_Exchange adjustment : (1,333) {2,001)
At 31 December 25,189 23,839
Movement of income tax payable:
B 2021 2020
KD’ooo0 KD'ooo
At 1 January 7,044 12,412
Provided during the year 16,758 14,294
Paid during the year (10,076) (18,801)
_Exchange adjustment _ (4.075) 39
At 31 December 10,551 7,944
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8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

N 2021 2020*

KD’ooo KD'ooo

Trade receivables 178,740 180,497
Contract assets 40,302 32,675
Advances and prepayments 20,016 24,342
Other receivables 7,407 9,650
255,465 247,164

Less: Expected credit loss {92,972) (95,909)
162,403 151,255

* Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications.

As of 31 December 2021, expected credit loss include an amount of KD 89,583 thousand {2020: KD
93,266 thousand) provision related to trade receivable.

Unimpaired receivables are expected on the basis of past experience to be fully recoverable. It is not
the practice of the Group to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majorities are therefore,
unsecured.

The average credit period on sales of goods and rendering of services varies from 30 days depending
on the type of customer and local market conditions. No interest is charged on outstanding trade
receivables,

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer base.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Estimated Estimated
total gross total gross
carrying  Expected carrying Expected

amount at credit loss Lifetime amount at credit loss Lifetime
Aging buckets default rate ECL default rate ECL
KD’ooo % KD’ooo KD’ooo0 % KD’ooo
< 30 days 48,665 5.61% 2,728 47,757 5.82% 2,780
31 — 60 days 6,776 11.82% 801 5,241 19.86% 1,041
61 — 9o days 3,880 20.70% 803 5,735 21.17% 1,214
> g0 days 119,419  71.39% 85,251 121,764 72.46% 88,231
178,740 89,583 180,497 93,266
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8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The below table shows the collective assessment of movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for trade and other receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9.

2021 2020

KD’ooo KD'ooo

Balance as at 1 January 95,900 86,872
Allowance for impairment 5,985 12,286
Amounts written off (7,089) (2,222)
Foreign exchange differences (1,823) (1,027)
Balance as at 31 December 92,972 95,900

9. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following

items:
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Bank balances and cash 124,449 104,348
Expected credit loss {38) (45)
Bank balances and cash in the consclidated statement of
financial position 124,411 104,303
Less:
Deposits with maturity of more than three months (11,726) (7,463)
Restricted deposits (15,790) {11,307)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of
cash flows at 31 December 96,805 85,533

Deposits are made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest on the respective deposit rates ranging from 0.19% to 7.29% (2020: 0.52% to 12.31%).

Deposits with maturity of more than three months were reclassified from bank balances and cash.

The Group has pledged fixed deposits amounting to KD 8,292 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020 : KD 2,752 thousand) as collateral against loans and borrowings (restricted deposits),

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are highly
regulated by the central banks of the respective countries. Accordingly, the management of the Group
estimates the loss allowance on balances with banks at the end of the reporting period at an amount
equal to 12 month ECL. None of the balances with banks at the end of the reporting period are past due,
and taking into account the historical default experience and the current credit ratings of the bank, the
Group has recorded a reversal of impairment loss of KD 7 thousand during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: impairment loss of KD 24 thousand).
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10 Equity

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Share Capital

The authorised, issued and fully paid up share capital as at 31 December 2021 consists of 504,033
thousand shares (2020: 504,033 thousand shares) of 100 fils each, contributed in cash.

Treasury Share
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Number of shares {000's) 2,871 2,871
Percentage of issued shares 0.57% 0.57%
Cost (KD 000's) 3,598 3,598
Market value (KD 000’s) 1,792 1,800

The Company is required to retain reserves and retained earnings at an equivalent rate of the
treasury shares as non-distributable throughout the period, in which they are held by the Company,
in accordance with the instructions of the relevant regulatory authorities.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its executive regulations and the
Company's Articles of Association, as amended, 10% of profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’ remuneration is required
to be transferred to a statutory reserve until the reserve exceeds 50% of the paid up share capital.
This reserve is not available for distribution except for the amount in excess of 50% of share capital
or for payment of a dividend of 5% of paid up share capital in years when retained earnings are not
sufficient for the payment of such dividends.

The Company has discontinued further transfers to statutory reserve as it has exceeded 50% of the
authorised, issued and fully paid up share capital.

Voluntary reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, as amended, 10% of profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Company before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’
remuneration is required to be transferred to the voluntary reserve until the shareholders decide
to discontinue the transfer to the voluntary reserve. During the current year, an amount of KD
2,035 thousand has been transferred to voluntary reserve (2020: KD 440 thousand). There are no
restrictions on distributions from the voluntary reserve,

Dividends

The Annual General Assembly of the Company, held on 1 March 2021, approved the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the payment of cash
dividend of 15 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2020: cash dividend of 50 fils
per share) to the Company’s shareholders existing as at 28 March 2021.

The Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of 35 fils per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 15 fils per share). This proposal is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Assembly and has not been accounted for in these consolidated
financial statements.
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10  EQUITY (CONTINUED)

S Other reserves

Gain on
sale of Fair
Share Statutory Voluntary treasury value Other Total
premium reserve rescrve shares reserve reserves reserves
KD'coo KD’ooo KIooo KD0oo KD6oo KDooo KDgoo
At 1 January 2020 66,634 32,200 136,303 6,014 (2,794) 3,412 242,669
Other comprehensive
Loss for the year - - - - (168) - {(168)
Transfer to voluntary
reserve - - 440 - - - 440
At 31 December 2020 66,634 32,200 136,743 6,014 (2,962) 3,412 242,941
At 1 January 2021 66,634 32,200 136,743 6,914 (2,962) 3412 242,041
Other comprehensive
Loss for the year - - - - (320) - (320)
Transfer to voluntary
reserve s = - 2,035 - - : - 2,035
At 31 December 2021 66,634 32,200 138,778 6,914 (3.282) 3412 244,656
11 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTEREST

The following table summarizes the information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests, before any intra-group eliminations:

QOoredoo
Ooredoo Tunisie
WTA Palestine S.A.
KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'ooo
31 December 2021
Non-current assets 240,617 50,990 106,375
Current assets 58,064 19,685 71,669
Non-current liabilities (25,688) (17,608) (27,906)
Current liabilities {(121,739) (17,669) (91,780)
Net assets 151,254 35,398 58,358
Carrying amount of NCI 43,864 17,960 14,590
Revenue 188,464 33.843 133.997
Profit 3.693 4,048 12,4171
Profit allocated to NCI 1,071 2,054 3,104
31 December 2020
Non-current assets 278,653 55,440 116,113
Current assets 52,028 14,331 68,205
Non-current liabilities (38,832) (21,583) (35,238)
Current liabilities {125,406} (16,675) {89,022)
Net assets 166,443 31,513 60,148
Carrying amount of NCI 48,268 15,989 15,037
Revenue 189,963 31,154 127,656
Profit 144 2,313 10,447
Profit allocated to NCI 42 1,173 2,612
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12

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Current Non-current
. 2021 2020 : 2021 2020
KD’ooco KD'ooo KD’ooo KD'coo
Due to local banks 27 12,000 - -
Due to local banks related to subsidiaries 16,441 16,536 12,696 33,488
16,468 28,536 12,606 33,488
The comparative fair value and carrying value of the Group’s long term debts are as follow:
Carrying amounts Fair values
2021 2020 2021 2020
KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'ooo
Fixed rates 1,485 7,035 1,485 7,471
Floating rates 27,670 54,989 27,762 55,346
29,164 62,024 29,247 62,817
The details of long term debts are as follows:
__ Description 2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
a) Unsecured debts from banks in Algeria not subject to any
financial covenants. These debts carry an effective interest rates
between 5% to 5.15% per annum (2020: between 5% to 5.15%).
These debts are maturing on 2026. These are denominated in
Algerian Dinar. 4,468 15,202
b) Debts secured against Wataniya Palestine Mobile Telecom
Limited’s fixed assets from banks in Palestine, These debts carry
an effective interest rate of Nil (2020: 5%) and were repayable in
quarterly instalments commencing December 2019. The debts
were fully settled during the year, These were denominated in Us
Dollar. - 7,035
¢) Unsecured debts of the Company from banks in Kuwait which are
subject to certain financial covenants over the terms of those
debts. These debts carry an effective interest rates of 2.1% per
annum (2020: 2.1%). These are denominated in Kuwait Dinar. 27 12,000
d) Unsecured debts of Ooredoo Tunisie S.A. from banks in Tunisia
which are subject to certain financial covenants to be complied
on an annual basis. These debts bears an effective interest rate of
7.62% per annum (2020 : 8.36%). The instalments of principal
and interest are payable quarterly. The first instalment of
principal was paid in June 2019, the first instalment of interest
was paid in June 2018. The last instalments of principal and
interest are payable on June 2024. 8,758 17,093
e) Secured debts from banks in Maldives against fixed deposits of
Ooredoo Maldives PLC. These loans carry an effective interest
rate between 4.29% and 8.5% (2020: between 4.78% and 6.77%).
These debts are repayable within the range of 30-54 monthly
instalments respectively with accrued interest. These are 15,911 10,694
___denominated in US Dollar. 1
29,164 62,024
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13  LEASE LIABILITIES

2021 2020 _
KD’ooo KD'ogo
At January 1 125,843 126,171
Additions during the year 20,335 24,474
Interest expense on lease liability (Note 19) 6,699 6,808
Payment of lease liabilities including interest (27,338) (26,280)
Reduction on early termination (1,238) (3.542)
Exchange adjustments (3.448) (1,878)
At 31 December 120,853 125,843
2021 2020
KD’oo0 KD'ooo
Non-current portion 100,710 107,846
Current portion 20,143 17,997

120,853 125,843

14  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

KD’ooo KD'ooo

Trade payables 83,903 90,555
Accrued expenses 173,932 171,506
Other tax payables 17,057 13,496
Staff payables 16,229 10,558
Dividend payables 6,943 6,682
Other payables 10,978 10,774
309,042 303,571

15 DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income pertains to unearned revenue from services that will be provided in future periods, It
primarily includes revenue from the unused and unutilized portion of prepaid cards sold. The sale of
prepaid cards is deferred until such time as the customer uses the airtime, or the credit expires,

16, REVENUE

The Group derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services
over time and at a point in time in the following revenue streams. The disclosure of revenue by

streams is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reportable segment

under IFRS 8 (note 28),
2021 2020 _
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Revenue from rendering of services 539,470 533,145
Sale of telecommunication equipment 61,383 58,993
Others - : 879 698
601,732 592,836
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16. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

17.

18.

19,

2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
At a point in time 61,383 58,993
Overtime 340,349 533,843
601,732 592,836
NETWORK, INTERCONNECT AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020"
KD’o00 KD'ooo
Outpayments and interconnect charges (76,316) (81,469)
Regulatory and related fees (45,318) (46,214)
Rentals and utilities {11,867) (11,398)
Network operation and maintenance (44,308) (47,367)
Cost of equipment sold and other services (70,420) (71,710)
Marketing costs and sponsorship {9,416) (10,704)
Commission on cards (29,375) (26,814)
Legal and professional fees (1,577) (1,618)
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (416) (1,956)
Other expenses (22,786) (18,493)
(311,799) (317,743)
* Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications,
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
- EERE= e s _ ¥ 2021, =~ 2020
KD’ooo KDooo
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4} {105,350) (104,593)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 5) (15,834) (19,245)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 6) (22,443) (22,443)
(143,627) (146,281)
FINANCE CosTs
2021 2020%
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Interest expenses (3,163) (4,447)
Interest cost on lease liability (Note 13) {(6,699) (6,808)
Other finance charges (1,013) (74)
(10,875) (11,419)

" Refer to note 29 for details regarding certain reclassifications.
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20. CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS, NLST AND ZAKAT

_ 2021 2020

KD’ooo0 KD'ooo

KFAS (z03) (44)

NLST {(186) {239)
_Zakat : e

(463) (378)

21.  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings for the period attributable to the
shareholders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at any time during the year and, therefore, the
dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share.

2021 2020
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent
(KD’oo0) 19,250 3,390
Number of shared outstanding:
Weighted average number of paid up shares (000’s) 504,033 504,033
Weighted average number of treasury shares (000’s) (2,871) (2,871)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares (000’s) 501,162 501,162
Basic and diluted earnings per share (KD) 38 7
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22 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group
and entities controlled, controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and
terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management. Transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties to the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Balances and transactions with related parties are as

follows:
As at 31 December
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
a) Balances included in the consolidated statement of
financial position
Payable to:
Qoredoo Group L.L.C - fellow subsidiary 14,316 11,889
Ooredoo IP L.L.C - fellow subsidiary 2,035 1,553
Ooredoo Oman - fellow subsidiary 54 -
Receivable from:
Uitimate parent company 704 1,019
Asiace]l Communications PJSC - fellow subsidiary 536 577
Others — fellow subsidiary 13 19
Year ended
31 December
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
b) Transactions included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
Revenue from:
Ultimate parent company 4,273 4,577
Others - fellow subsidiary 9 124
Operating expenses to:
Ultimate parent company 680 58
Others - fellow subsidiary 59 37
Management fees to Ooredoo Group L.L.C - fellow subsidiary 12,950 12,831
Brand license fees to Qoredoo IP L.1.C - fellow subsidiary 3.565 3,552
16,515 16,383
¢) Compensation of key management personnel:
Short term benefits 7,608 7:434
Termination benefits 669 691
8,277 8,125

During the year, the Group has entered into transactions with related parties on terms approved by

the management.
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23  COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo

a) Capital commitments
For the acquisition of property and equipment 29,888 32,181
For the acquisition of mohile license in a subsidiary 51,165 51,452
81,053 83,633

b) Contingent liabilities
Letters of guarantee 4,903 3,893
Letters of credit 8,941 8,006
13,844 11,899

Litigation and claims:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

4y

€4]

Additional tax claims amounting to KD 5,541 thousand on OQoredoo Tunisie S.A. for
assessment periods 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 from tax authorities in Tunisia.
Management has responded to this notification and believes that the prospects of these claims
being resolved in the Group's favour are good.

Additional tax claims amounting to KD 848 thousand on Wataniya Telecom Algerie S,P.A.
{WT A) for assessment periods 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2016 from tax authorities in
Algeria.

In October 2019, the Algerian Central Bank claimed an amount of KD 22,013 thousand in
respect of certain alleged foreign currency violations by WTA. Currently, WTA's appeal against
this claim is in the Court of Cassation.

In October 2019, a third party vendor of WTA obtained an order from the Judicial Authorities
of Algeria to block an amount of KD 1,874 thousand from WTA's bank account. WTA appealed
to the Court against this.

Algeria Regulatory Authority of the Post and Electronic Communications (ARPCE), imposed
a fine of KD 294 thousand in respect of non-compliance in 2018 of ARPCE rules. WTA had
contested the fine by sending an objection letter to ARPCE and has appealed the fine to the
State Council against ARPCE fine.

Claims against Ooredoo Maldives PLC amounting to KD 1,314 thousand from the First
Instance Civil Court of Maldives citing breach of contract based on a civil case filed by a third
party. Ooredoo Maldives PLC has appealed against this claim in the High Court of Maldives in
January 2019 and received a favourable decision on 30 August 2021.

A part of the regulatory tariff levied on mobile telecommunication operators in Kuwait by the
Ministry of Communications since 26 July 2011 was invalidated by the Kuwait Court of
Cassation in April 2017. Accordingly, the Group has contingent assets in the form of recovery
of excess regulatory tariff paid. In January 2022, the first degree judgement is issued in favour
of the Group.
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24

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, finance leases, and trade
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, investments and cash and short-
term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s profit, equity or value of its holding of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control the market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return. The Group exposure is not
significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's financial assets and labilities that are subject to interest rate risk comprise bank deposits,
loans and borrowings. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s financial assets and liabilities with floating interest rates and fixed interest
instruments maturing within three months from the end of the financial reporting year.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit as well as equity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates of 1% (2020: 1%). The calculations are based on the Group’s financial
instruments held at each reporting date. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and
a negative number indicates a decrease in profit.

Increase 2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Impact on profit +1 (413) (733)

Sensitivity to interest rate movements will be on a symmetric basis.

The Group has closely monitored the market and the output from the various industry working groups
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities and the Group’s net
investment in foreign subsidiaries,



National Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.P.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts are expressed in Kuwaiti Dinars unless otherwise stated)

24

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group had the following significant net exposure denominated in foreign currencies,

Net exposure Net exposure
impacting net profit impacting equity

2021 2020 2021 2020

KD’ooo KD'ooo KD’ooo KD'ooo

USD Dollar (8,490)  (14,324) 1,361 (7,566)
MVR Rufiyaa - - 11,112 7,173
Tunisian Dinar - e (43,370)  (48,855)
Algerian Dinar - - (85,868) (110,858)
UAE Dirham - (6,807) (4,139)  (11,836)
Euro 3,379 6,806 - -
Others 1,535 134 - -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to consolidated statement of profit or loss and equity
to a 10% increase in the KD against the other currencies (a reasonably possible change), with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities and the Group's equity on account of translation of foreign subsidiaries.

The effect of decreases in foreign exchange rates is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of
the increases shown:

Impact on net profit Impact on equity

2021 2020 2021 2020

KD’ooo KD'ooo KD’ooo KD'ooo

USD Dollar 849 1,432 (136) 757
MVR Rufiyaa - - (1,111) (717}
Tunisian Dinar - - 4,337 4,886
Algerian Dinar - - 8,587 11,086
UAE Dirham - 681 414 1,184
Euro (338) (681) - S
GBP (154) (13) : -

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities will fluctuate as a result of changes in the
level of equity indices or the value of individual share prices. Equity price risk arises from the change
in fair values of listed equity investments. The Group manages the risk through diversification of
investments in terms of industry concentration. The effect of equity price risk on profit for the year of
the Group is not significant.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is as indicated by
the carrying amount of its assets which consist principally of trade receivables bank balances and
deposits.
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24 FINANCIAL RiISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group provides telecommunication services to various customers. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who obtain the goods and / or services on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the purchase of
service limits are established for each customer, which are reviewed regularly based on the level of
past transactions and settlement. The Group’s maximum exposure as at 31 December is as follows:

2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Trade and other receivables 132,477 126,914
Bank balances 121,274 101,513
Other non-current assets 3,224 2,863
257,975 231,290

The Group reduces the exposure of credit risk arising from bank balances by maintaining bank
accounts in reputed banks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by geographic region

was:
2021 2020
KD’ooo KD'ooo
Kuwait 100,413 89,274
Tunisia 64,083 61,996
Algeria 33,415 30,945
Maldives 42,007 35,901
Palestine 18,045 13,162
Others 12 12
Em | 2;ili220

Credit risk measurement

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;
- external credit rating (as far as available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower;
- significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of
third-party guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behavior of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the group and changes in the operating results of the
borrower,
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(@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Macroeconomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as part of
the internal rating model. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 to 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. Considering the Group’s
large and unrelated customer base, the concentration of credit risk is limited.

Credit risk grades

Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of
default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.
Exposures are subject to on-going monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a
different credit risk grade.

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well as the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

Gross Net
12-month or  ecarrying Loss  carrying
Rated  lifetime ECL amount __ allowance amount
KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'ooo
31 December 2021 )
Cash and bank balances Rated 12 month ECL 121,312 (38) 121,274
Trade and other receivables (i) NotRated  Lifetime ECL 226,449 {92,972) 133,477
Other non-current assets NotRated  Lifetime ECL 3.471 (247) 3,224
Gross Net
12-month or  carrying Loss carrying
Rated  lifetime ECL amount allowance  amount
KD'eoo KD'ooo KD'ooo
31 December 2020
Cash and bank balances Rated 12 month ECL 101,558 (45) 101,513
Trade and other receivables (i) NotRated  Lifetime ECL 222,823 (95,909) 126,914
Other non-current assets Not Rated  Lifetime ECL 3,468 (604) 2,864

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS g to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of
the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic
conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due
status in terms of the provision matrix,

The Group holds no collateral over any of these balances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s own reserves and bank facilities. The Group’s terms of sales require amounts to be paid within
30 to go days from the invoice date.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than 1 1tos
year years > 5 year Total

KD’ooo KD’ocoo KD’ooo KD'ooo

At 31 December 2021

Loans and borrowings 17,031 13,491 - 31,422
Trade payables 309,042 - - 309,042
Lease liabilities 26,263 91,671 32,683 150,617
Other non-current liabilities - 5,002 13,575 18,577

353,236 110,164 46,258 500,658

At 31 December zo20

Loans and borrowings 31,039 36,157 708 67,904
Trade payables 303,571 - - 303,571
Lease liabilities 24,275 85,990 46,077 156,342
Other non-current liabilities - 15,644 - 15,644

358,885 137,791 46,785 543,461

Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitors the Group performance in relation to its long range business plan and its long-term
profitability objectives.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
assets of liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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FAIR VALUGES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

2021 _
Level 1 Level 2 Total
KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'ooo
Financial assets — equity instruments
Listed equity securities 80 - 80
Unlisted equity securities - 1,520 1,520
8o 1,520 1,600
2020 __
Level 1 Level 2 Total
KD'ooo KD'ooo KD'coo
Financial assets — equity instruments
Unlisted equity securities - 1,920 1,920
- 1,920 1,920

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities, excluding loans and borrowings, approximate
their carrying value.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future
events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The
effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they
become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of subsidiaries

The appropriate classification of certain investments as subsidiaries requires significant analysis
and management judgment as to whether the Group exercises control, significant influence or joint
control over these investments. This may involve consideration of a number of factors, including
ownership and voting rights, the extent of Board representation, contractual arrangements and
indicators of de facto control.
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26  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTI MATES (CONTINUED)
Recognition of revenue

Management considers recognizing revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met,
otherwise revenue will be recognized at a point in time:

a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

b)  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

¢)  the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Capitalisation of costs

Management determines whether the Group will recognise an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil
a contract and costs incurred to obtain a contract if the costs meet all the following criteria:

a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future; and

¢) the costs are expected to be recovered.

Such asset will be amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or services to which the asset relates.

Credit risk measurement

The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood
of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between
counterparties. The Group measures credit risk using Probability of Default (“PD"), Exposure at
Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default (“LGD™.

Contract variations

Contract variations are recognised as revenues only to the extent that it is probable that they will not
result in a significant reversal of revenue in subsequent periods. Management considers prior
experience, application of contract terms and the relationship with the customers in making their
judgment.

Contract claims
Contract claims are recognised as revenue only when management believes that only to the extent
that itis probable that they will not result in a significant reversal of revenue in subsequent periods.

Management reviews the judgment related to these contract claims periodically and adjustments
are made in the future periods, if assessments indicate that such adjustments are appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Judgments in determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

The Group generally recognise revenue over time as it performs continuous transfer of control of
these services to the customers. Because customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by these services and the control transfer takes place over time, revenue is also
recognised based on the extent of service transfer/ completion of transfer of each performance
obligation. In determining the method for measuring progress for these POs, we have considered
the nature of these services as well as the nature of its performance.

For performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, the Group considers the general
requirements of control (i.e. direct the use of asset and obtain substantially all benefits) and the
following non-exhaustive list of indicators of transfer of control:

Entity has present right to payment
Customer has legal title

Entity has transferred legal possession
Customer has significant risk and rewards
Customer has accepted the asset

In making their judgment, the directors considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of
revenue set out in IFRS 15 and, in particular, whether the Group had transferred control of the goods
to the customer. Following the detailed quantification of the Group's liability in respect of
rectification work, and the agreed limitation on the customer’s ability to require further work or to
require replacement of the goods, the directors are satisfied that control has been transferred and
that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in conjunction with the recognition
of an appropriate warranty provision for the rectification costs.

Principal versus agent

Significant judgments are made by management when concluding whether the Group is transacting
as an agent or a principal. The assessment is performed for each separate revenue stream in the
Group. The assessment requires an analysis of key indicators, specifically whether the Group:

carries any inventory risk;

has the primary responsibility for providing the goods or services to the customer;
has the latitude to establish pricing; and

bears the customer’s credit risk.

These indicators are used to determine whether the Group has exposure to the significant risks and
rewards associated with the sate of goods or rendering of services. For example, any sale relating to
inventory that is held by the Group, not on consignment, is a strong indicator that the Group is
acting as a principal.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
and termination options are included in several leases across various classes of right-of-use assets
across the Group. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of the termination options held are exercisable both by the Group and the
respective lessor. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).The assessment is
reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee. In cases where lease contracts have indefinite
term or are subject to auto renewal, lease term is determined considering the business case and
reasonably certain renewal of lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
each reporting date. Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such indicators exist.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include
the following;:

significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset;
market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating the asset’s
value in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount materially;

¢ significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

¢ significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

¢ significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Group determines an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount has been determined based on value in use
calculations. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that
will enhance the asset base of the cash-generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount of
investment is determined based on the net present value of future cash flows, management
assumptions made, including management’s expectations of the investment's:

¢ growth in earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA™), calculated
as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation;

¢ timing and quantum of future capital expenditures;

¢ long term growth rates ranges during discrete period and terminal period; and

¢ the selection of discount rates reflects the risks involved.

The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow
model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes. Refer note 5 for the impairment assessment for goodwill,

In the case of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, at a minimum, such assets are
subject to an annual impairment test and more frequently whenever there is an indication that such
asset may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows (Note 5).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment
and investment properties based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these assets. It is
possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties would increase depreciation expense and
decrease noncurrent assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its intangible assets for
calculating amortisation. This estimate is determined based on the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Group's management determines provision on best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation as a result of the past event at the reporting date.

The Group’s management measures contingent liabilities as a possible obligation depending on
whether some uncertain future event occurs or a present obligation but payment is not probable or
the amount cannot be measured reliably.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The Group
believes that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or
obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts, this
estimation is performed on an individual basis. Inventories which are not individually significant,
but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
inventory type and the degree of ageing or cbsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Uncertain tax exposures

In certain circumstances, the Group may not be able to determine the exact amount of its current or
future tax liabilities or recoverable amount of the claim refund due to ongoing investigations by, or
discussions with the various taxation authorities. In determining the amount to be recognized in
respect of uncertain tax liability or the recoverable amount of the claim for tax refund related to
uncertain tax positions, the Group applies similar considerations as it would use in determining the
amount of a provision to be recognized in accordance with IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatment, IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and IAS 12 Income
Taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation of financial information

The Group accounts for its investment in associate using equity accounting as required by IAS 28.
For the investment where information is not available at the reporting date, the Group has estimated
the financial information based on the historical trends, quarterly financial information, budgets
and future forecasts. Management believes that estimated financial information is reasonable.

Customer loyalty programme

The Company allocates a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price (“SSP”). The Company estimates the SSP of loyalty points by estimating the
weighted average cost for redemption of the points based on the actual value of the products
redeemed during the year. Inputs to the models include making assumptions about expected
redemption rates and the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the future.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that
are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

i r r
As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS g does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the

Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information,

Calculation of loss allowance

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate
of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical
data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information,
which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these
drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account
cash flows from collateral and integral eredit enhancements.
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26  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Business meoedel assessment (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages qualified external
valuers to perform the valuation. The management/ valuation committee if any works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of
various assets and liabilities are disclosed in respective notes.

27 ImpacT OF COVID-19

During the current year, due to continued uncertainties caused by COVID-19, Group has
considered whether any adjustments and changes in judgments, estimates and risk management
are required to be considered and reported in the consolidated financial information. The Group’s
business operations remain largely unaffected by the current situation.

The Group has performed a qualitative assessment for its investment in CGUs, considering the
minimal impact of COVID-19 on entities operating in telecommunication sector, and compared
the actual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 against the budget and industry
benchmarks which confirmed that the impairment assessment as at 31 December 2020 remains
unchanged.

The Group has updated the inputs and assumptions used for the determination of expected credit
losses (“ECLs™) as at 31 December 2021. ECLs are estimated based on the relevant forward-
looking macroeconomic factors, significant increase in credit risk, and assessing the indicators of
impairment for the exposures in potentially affected sectors.

The Group will continue to closely monitor the impact of COVID-19 as the situation progresses
to manage the potential business disruption COVID-19 outbreak may have on its operations and
financial performance.

28 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is set out below in accordance with “IFRS
8 Operating Segments”, IFRS 8 requires reportable segments to be identified on the basis of
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker, the
Group Chief Financial Officer, and used to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group is mainly engaged in a single line of business, being the supply of telecommunications
services and related products. The majority of the Group’s revenues, profits and assets relate to
its operations in the MENA. Outside of Kuwait, the Group operates through its subsidiaries and
major operations are considered by the Group to be reportable segments. Revenue is attributed
to reportable segments based on the location of the Group companies. Inter-segment sales are
charged at arms’ length prices.

For management reporting purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their
geographical area covered. Apart from its operations in Kuwait, the Company also operates
through its foreign subsidiaries in Algeria, Tunisia, Maldives and Palestine.

Management monitors the operating results of its operating subsidiaries separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss of these reportable segments. Transfer
pricing between reportable segments are on an arm'’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.
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